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. UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT -OF NEW YORK

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION

OF THE UNITED STATES FOR AN ORDER

AUTHORIZING THE INTERCEPTION OF- : , :

- WIRE COMMUNICATIONS OCCURRING : " AFFIDAVIT
' TO AND FROM CELLULAR TELEPHONE : . ‘

NUMBER (917) 859-2012, BEARING

. ELECTRONIC SERIAL NUMBER

- €31CB48, SUBSCRIBED TO BY

MEDIA WAVES 90 WEST STREET, v

NEW YORK, NEW YORK.

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK, - S8:

LESTER R. MCNULTY Special Agent of the Federal Bureau
. of Investlgatlon ("FBI"), being duly,sworn, deposes and says as’
follows: |

1. I am an "investigative or law enforcement officer
of the United States" within the meaning of Title 18, United
States code, Section 2510(7), that is, an officer of the United
States who is empowered by law to conduct 1nvest1gat10ns and to
make arrests for offenses ‘enumerated in Title 18 United States
Code, Section 2516,

2. I have been a Special Agent with the FBI for
approxlmately eleven Years. oOn May 1, 1994, the FBI formed c-24,
also known as the Russian! Organized Crime Squad, in New York City
to 1nvest1gate Russian Organized Crlme ("ROC"). I have been
assigned to C-24 since jits 1nceptlon. Prev1ously, T was a551gned

to C-6, also known as the Asian Organized Crime Squad in New
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York City. c-6 investigated Russian and other}non—f;aditional
organized crime as well as Asian Organized Crime. I.have/also
been assigned to foreign counter;intelligenCe squads, which
focused chiefly on clandestine activities of I'epresentatives of
the Soviet Union (and its successor states) in the United States,
3. As a Special Agent, I have participated in
numerous organizeé Crime investigatiqns, during which I have
coﬁducted or partiéipated in physicél and electronic
surveillances, undercover ‘transactions and executions of search
warrants. I have debriefed sources and confidential sources and
reviewed numerous recorded conversations. Through my training,

education and experience, I have become familiar with the manner

in which members and associates of organized crime, including

ROC, conduct their illegal activities, including their efforts to

avoid detection by law enforcement. I also haVe»extehsive

experience in analyzing telephone traffic in organizeg crime and

narcotics investigations through the use of pen registefs,
telephone Pager-monitors and electronic surveillance.

4. For almost two Years, I have pPersonally
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concerning offenses enumefated in 18 U.s.c. § 2516, that is: (a)
offenses involving collection of funds throughbextortion,vand
conspiracy and attempt to do the same, in violation of 18 u. S.C.
§ 1951; (b) offenses 1nvolv1ng the distribution of narcotlc drug
controlled substances and the use of any communications facility,
in violation of 21 U.s.c. §§ 841(a)(1) and 843(b); and conspiracy |
andfattempt to do the same, in Qiolation of 21 U.S.C. § 846; and
(c) aiding and abetting the offenses described in (a) and (b), in
violation of 18 U.s.c. § 2.1/ |

6. Based on the facts set forth below, there is -

probable cause to believe that: (a) the offenses_éet forth in
paragraph 5 above are being committed and will continue to be
'commltted by VYACHESLAV KIRILLOVICH IVANKOV, a/k/a "Yaponchlk "
EDUARD IVANKOV, a/k/a "Edik,"2/ VYACHESLAV SLIVA, a/k/a
"Slava," JOSEPH SIGALOV,.IRENE KOMISAR and others whose
identities are presently unknown; (b) the particuler wire
communications of VYACHESLAV KIRILLOVICH IVANKOV, a/k/a
"Yaponchik, " EDUARD IVANKOV, a/k/a "Edik," VYACHESLAV SLIVA,
’ a/k/a "Slava," JOSEPH SIGALOV, IRENE KOMISAR and others as yet
unknown concerning these offenses w1ll be obtained through the.

interception of wire communlcatlons occurring to and from

i/ Section 2 of Title 18, United States Code, is not a
predicate offense under 18 U.S.C. § 2516.

2/ VYACHESLAV KIRILLOVICH IVANKOV has a son and a nephew
nicknamed "Edik." = The named 1nterceptee in this affivadit is
IVANRUV's nephew. As set forth in more detail below, the RCMP
intercepted IVANKOV's nephew, "Edlk " speaking to IVANKOV on the
SUBJECT TELEPHONE.



CELLULAR TELEPHONE NUMBER.(917) 859-2012, BEARING ELECTRONIC
'SERIAL NUMEER C31CB48, SUBSCRIBED TO BY MEDIA ﬁAVES 90 WEST
STREET NEW YORK, NEW YORK (the "SUBJECT TELEPHONE") 1n the
comm1551on of those offenses; (c¢) evidence of these offenses,

_ 1nclud;ng (i) the nature, extent and methods of operation of the
illegal activities of VYACHESLAV KIRILLOVICH IVANKOV, a/k/a
"Yaponchlk " EDUARD IVANKOV, a/k/a "Edik," VYACHESLAV SLIVA

a/k/a "Slava," JOSEPH SIGALOV, IRENE KOMISAR and others as yet
unknown; (ii) the 1dent1t1es and roles of accompllces aiders and
abettors, co-conspirators, par :icipants and victims in their
illegal activities; (iii) the distribution and transfer of the
contraband and money involved in those activities; (1v) the
ex1stence and location of records, (v) the existence, location
‘and source of resources used to finance their illegal activities;
(vi) the existence, location and dispositionvof the proceeds from
those activities; and (vii) the existence and locations of items
used in furtherance of those activities, will be obtained through
the interception of wire communications uccurring to and from the
SUBJECT TELEPHONE which has been and is being used by VYACHESLAV
KIRILLOVICH IVANKOV, a/k)a "Yaponchik,” EDUARD IVANKOV, a/k/a
"Edik " VYACHESLAV SLIVA, a/k/a "Slava " JOSEPH SIGALOV IRENE
KOMISAR and others as yet unkncwn in the commission of those
offenses. The requested order is sought for a period of time

. until the 1nterceptlon fully reveals the manner in which the
above described offenses are being committed, or for a period of

30 days, whichever occurs first, pursuant to 18 U.S.c. § 2518.



7, This case is currently being 1nvest1gated by

' Specxal Agents of the FBI. It is anticipated that during_the :
requested electronic surveillance, ali monitoring willlbe\

" performed by Special Agents of the FBI, and governmenr employees
or individuais operating under a contracf with the government who
‘w1ll be actlng under the supervision of 1nvest1gat1ve or law
enforcement officers authorized to conduct the 1ntercept10n.

8. It is requested ‘that, if necessary, certaln other
1nd1v1duals be- authorized to assist in conducting this electronic
surveillance and to receive discl:osure of 1ntercepted
communications. Thus if 1nd1v1duals conver51ng over the SUBJECTiZ
TELEPHONE communicate with each other in some language other than
_English, and if Special Agents of the FBI who understand that |
language are not reasonabiy available to monltor such
' conversationst it may be necessary to secure the services of
- translators in order‘to assist in monitoring the electronic
surveillance and translating'the intercepted conmunications. 211
such persons will(be directly supervised by agents of the-FBI.

9. I have personally partlclpated in the
1nvest1gatlon of the offenses referred to in paragraph 5 above,
and from my personal part1c1patlon in thlS 1nvest1gatlon and from
' reports made to me by other Special Agents of the FBI, as well as
other law enforcement authorltles including the RCMP, I an
-familiar with the facts and circumstances of this 1nvest1gatlon.
1Based upon this knowledge I allege the facts contained in the

paragraphs below to demonstrate that:



Subiects and Offenses

(a) There is probable cause to believe that’ VYACHESLAV
KIRTLLOVICH IVANKOV, a/k/a “Yaponchik," EDUARD IVANKOV, a/vk/a‘
"Edik," VYACHESLAV SLIVA, a/k/a "Slava;" JOSEPH SIGALov; IRENE
KOMISAR and others as yet unknown have committed, are comnitting
and will continue to commit the following: (i) offenses |
involving collection of fundsnthrough extortion, and conspiraoy
and attempt to do the same, in violation of 18 U.s.cC. § 1951;
(ii) offenses involving the dlstrlbutlon of narcotic drug
controlled substances and the use of any communications facility
1n furtherance of a narcotics offense, in violation of 21 U.s.C
§§ 841(a) (1) and 843(b); and conspiracy and attempt to do the
same, in violation of 21 U.s.c. § 846; and (iii) aiding and
abetting the offenses described in (i) and (ii), in violation of
18 U.s.C. § 2. o

- The Subiject Cellular Telephone

(b) There is probable cause to believe that VYACHESLAV
oKIRILLOVICH IVANKOY, a/k/a "Yaponchik,* EDUARD IVANKOV a/k/a
”Edik," VYACHESLAV SLIVA a/k/a "°lava," JOSEPH SIGALOV, IRENE
KOMISAR and others as yet unknown will be communlcatlng during
the period of 1nterceptlon over the SUBJECT TELEPHONE in
>furtherance of in connection with, to fac111tate, to accompllsh
to discuss and to commit the offenses described in paragraph (a)

-above.



Objectives

(c) There is probable cause to believe that the
interception of wire commﬁnicatidns, the authorlzatlon for whlch
is sought herein, will reveal: (i) the nature, extent and
methods of operation of the illegal activities of VYACHESLAV
KIRILLOVICH IVANKOV a/k/a "YuponChlk," EDUARD IVANKOV, a/k/a
"Edik," VYACHESLAV SLIVA,ha/k/a “Slava," JOSEPH SIGALOV, IRENE
"KOMISAR and others as yet unknown; (ii) the identities ahd roles
~of accomplices, aiders and abettore, co-conspirators, B
participants and victims in their iliegal activities; (iii) the
distribution and transfer of the'contrahand and money involved in
 those activities; (i&) the existence and location of recerds; (v)
the existence, location and source of resources used to finance
their 1llega1 activities; (vi) the ex1stence, location and
disposition of the proceeds from those actlvltles, and (vii) the
existence and 1ocatlons of 1tems used in furtherance of those
activities. 1In addltlon, these wire communications are expected
to constltute adm1551b1e ev1dence of the commission cf the above—
described offenses. . ) :
Prior'Aleications ’

.(d)‘ On September 28, 1994, the Honorable Justice
Ewaschuk in Toronto, canada issued an order, pursuant to the
Privacy.Act' Part Six of the Cahad;an Criminel Code, authorizing
the RCMP to intercept electronic and oral communications of
numerous ROC subjects, 1nclud1ng JOSEPH SIGALOV, for the period

Oclober 4, 1994 through December 2, 1994. Justice Ewaschuk



issued'renewal orders on December 2, 1994 and January 28, 199s5.
The renewal orders also included VYACHESLAV SLIVA, a/k/a “Slava,"
as a named interceptee. | |

(e) I have been advised that a review has been made of
the electronlc surveillance indices of the FBI on March 20, 1995
and of the Drug Enforcement Admlnlstratlon on or about March 20,
1995. I am not aware of any other applications that have sought
1nterceptlon of electronic, wire or oral communications with
respect to the named 1nterceptees or facility.

(f) 'Normal investigative procedures have been tried
and have failed, reasonably appear likely to fail to achieve all

the goals of this investigation if tried, or are too dangerous to

-employ.

Basis of Information:
Basis of Information

10. The statements contained in this affidavit are
based in part on my experience and training as an agent of the
FBI; on information provided by Spec1al Agents of the FBI,
members of foreign law enforcement agencies, including the RCMP?, .
and law enforcement offlcers with other federal, state and iocal
agencies; and on information provided by confidential sources. I
have reviewed 1nvest1gat1ve reports and 1ntercepted conversatlons

relating to this case. 1T have also done a significant amount of

research and study concerning the operation of Russian Organlzed

Crlme in the Unlted States, Canada Europe and Russia.

Throughout this affidavit, I w1ll refer to information received

from other Special Agents of the FBI and law enforcement
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authorities wﬁo have been of are currzantly receiving information
from cOnfidéntial sourceés and electronic surveiilances.

11. Since this affidavit is being submitted for the
limifed purpose of securing authorization for the intefception of
wire communications, I have not included each and evefy fact
"known to me concerning_this investigation. ‘I have set forth only
thelfacts that I believe are necessary to establish the necessary
foundation for an order authorizing the interception of wire
communicatiohs.

Source of Prcbable Causé»

A. Summary of Investigation

| 12. VYACHESLAV KIRILLOVICH IVANKOV, a/k/a'"Yaponchik“
["Little Japanese"] belongs to an elite group of high-level
.criminals known in the Soviét Union and its successor states as
"thieves in law."  He leads an international criminal |
organizaéion'that commits a wide array of crimes, indluding drﬁg
dealing, extortion and acts of viélence, including murder, in
| furtherance,of.these offenses. §ince apnroximately 1923A;JV§§§QV
has conducted his crimihal activitigé from a base in the Brighton
Beach sention °f_Br29klvé; New York. As described in detail o
below, the FBI has obtained evidence ih recent monthslthat
IVANKOV is using the SUBJECT TELE%HONE to manage hié organization
and further its criminal activities, particularly, drug dealing

and the extortion of two Russian businessmen in New York.
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' B. 'Background of Russian Organized Crime Activities

13. Based on many confidential sources of information,
discussions with law enforcement officials in the United States
and other oountries, including Russia, and review of numérous
studies and reports'about ROC, as set forth more fully in § 10
‘above, I have become familiar with the largest organizations now
comprlslng ROC and the basic structures and activities of these
organlzatlons.

14. ROC is composed of gfoups with cettain
characteristics that have flourisled in post-Soviet Russia.

These groups are highly fluid Numetous organizations have
formed along ethnic lines: two of the most 1mportant ‘groupings
are Chechen and Georg1an.3/ Chechen and Georgian organlzed

crime groups operate throughout the Commonwealth of Independent
States (the "CIS"), but malntaln bases in their native areas.
They exert oontrol =~ through bribefy,.kickbacks, threats and
violence -- over the flow of goods into and out of their reglonal
strongholds. Within a given ethnic group, there are numerous"
criminal organizations; these organizations compete among
themselves and with other ROC groups. |

15. In and around Moscow, the capital of the Rus51an

'Republlc, many crlmlnal groups have emerged. Several of the

3/ Chechnya is a region that - ‘was formally part of Russia but is
now seeking 1ndependence, Georgia was a separate Republic in the
Soviet Union which is now an 1ndependent country. Both regions
have produced criminal gang members ror many years, dating at
least to the period of black market activity under the Sov1et
regime. :
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Moscow groups'are centered in particular neighoorhoods. The -
largest and most powerful of these groups is the "Solntsevskaya"
organization, based in the "SOlntsevo" section of Moscow. The
vfounders and leaders of this organization are Sergei Mikhaylov
a/k/a "Mikhas," and Viktor Averin, a/k/a ‘"Avera," some of whose
act1v1t1es are discussed below Other neigthrhood—based Moscow
organizations include "Orekhovo- ~Borisov, " "Lyuberetskaya" and.
‘"Izmailovskaya." |

16. ROC groups use businesses in the forner Soviet
Union, Western and Central Europe and the United states to serve
as fronts for laundering the proceeds of 1llega1 act1v1t1es and
for conducting highly profitable commerce in goods'in the CIs.
Rife with corruption, this commerce thrlves on such illegal
practices as extortion, bribery of public officials and threats
and violence directed toward rivals. In addition, ROC groups
often operate,\and,in other cases demand "protectiOn" money from;
a large percentage of the private bus1nesses operating 1n Moscow
and other large cities, particularly financ1al institutions which
engage in large currency transactions. ROC groups also control
drug trafficking in Russia and the CIs.

17. RoC organizations nse groups of .enforcers,
organized into what are sometimes called "combat brigades," to
extort money from businessmen in the former Soviet Republics,

. Western Europe and the United States, to collect "protection®
money, to kill enemies, rivals or targets who will notrmeet |

extortionate demands, and to provide security and perform
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miscellaneous other tasks in furtherance of ii%egel aiﬁs. Each
>such combat brigade has a leader who reports directly to the head
of a given organization. | |

18. Among the top echelon of these various criminal
groups ie a loosely-knit association of between 50 and 200
criminals from the former Soviet Union and its successor states
cailed, in Russian, "vory v zakone," which is commonly translated
as "thieves in law."#/ Thieves in law take oaths and are
indueted'in ritualized ceremonies. ' They often arbitrate disputes_
among organized crime groups z.1d take a cdmmission-for this
service. The power of a partieular "thief in law" depends on the
size and effectiveness of his organization. VYACHESLAV IVANKOV
a/k/a "Yaponchik" is one of the most powerful of the "thieves in-:
la&."‘ '

19. IVANKOV formed a criminal organization in Russia
in apﬁroximately 1980. Originally, IVANKOV and hie workere used
fraudulent militia documents to search the ﬁomes of wealthy
individuals ‘and steal money and other valuables. After being
convicted of crimes relating to these thefts, IVANKOV was |
sentenced to 14 years in jail. According to the Ministry df
'Internal‘Affairs of the Russian Federetion (the "MVD"), IVANKOV

and his associates bribed a judge on the Russian Supreme Court to

4/ "Thief in law" is a literal translation from the Russian. In
this context, the term connotes a criminal who lives by a code of
conduct -- similar to "made" members of traditional Italian
organized crime families. '
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gain a reduction in his sehtence; IVANKOV waé released in 1991
after serving only 10 years. | |
| 20. ,Upon his release, IVANKOV was placéd on probation
and supervised by Moscow Police. IVANKOV violated his probation.
A warrant was issued for his arrest, and IVANKOV is now a.
fugitive from Russian justice.

21. Since his releasé from prison, IVANKOV has begun
to build and solidify his criminal aséociatidns in the United
statés. In January 1993, the MUD advised the FBI that IVANKOV
had entered the United States to .anage-end eemtrel ROC
activities in this country. The MVD also éave the FBI a list of
telephéne numbers that IVANKOV would be using when he came to
this country, and pen registers were installed on the
cbrreSponding telephone lines. A review of the pen registers
revealed that IVANKOV used these numbers to call indivi&uals who
have been identified'és.memberé of ROC around the world. Since
IVANKOV has been in the United States, otherlFBI agents have
observed IVANKOV meeting with other known ROC members. IVANKQV
has established at least one front company in New Yofk -- Slavic
Inc. -- to conduct money laundering transactions. He has also
' ehgéged in several acts of extortion and, from his base in
‘Brighton Beach, Brooklyn, has oﬁefseen his organization's

criminal activities in Russia and Western and Eastern Europe.éf

5/ An examination of Immigration and Naturalization Services
("INS") records reveals that IVANKOV entered the United States in
1992 on a business visa, which was obtained fraudulently insofar
~as IVANKOV lied about his criminal history in Russia. IVANKOV's
visa has since expired.
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22. From a number of confidential soprces,‘other FBI‘
agents and I have learﬂéd that IVANKOV has a former wife and son
.who live in the area of Denvér, Colorado, and that IVANKOV
frequently travels there. ‘We have obtained a copy of é Colorado
driﬁe;'s license in the name of "VYACHESLAV IVANKOV," which
provides an address in Denver as his home address. 1In addition,
recérds'for the SUBJECT TELEPHONE, discussed below,
reveal that in March 1995 IVANKOV has used the SUBJECT TELEPHONE
from the Denver area.

C. Confidential Informaticn Concerning IVANKOV
and Other ROC Figures

23. Fellow FBI agents have debriefed a confidential
source (“Cs-l") whose information has been extensively
corroborated by other confidential sources, physical
surveillances, seizures of certain documents and telephone
records, as described below. The information seﬁ forth iﬁ this‘
section\bf the affidavit, except where noted, is based on

numerous debriefings of CS~-1.

1. IVANKOV's.Orqanization and Tllegal Activities

24. According to CS-1, IVANKOV is one of the most
powerful of the "thieves in law." IVANKOV?s alias "Yaponchik"
["Little Japanese"] was.the name used by a legendary criminal
figure in the Soviet Union in the 1920s.

25. IVANKOV's organization operates in numerous cities
in Europe, Canada and the United States,'chiefly, New York,
London, Toronto, Vienna, Budapest and Moscow. IVANKOV haé

recruited individuals to engage in a wide range of illegal



C

15

activities, including murder, extortion of individeals and
businesses involved in commerce in or with Russia and other CIS
states, drﬁg trafficking and the laundering of proceeds from-drug
dealing and other illegal activities.

26. IVANKOV's organization has two principal groups of

enforcers, sometimes called "combat brigades," which are headed

by Aleksel Petrov a/k/a "Petrik," and FNU Inshakov, a/k/a

'"Inshak " (The EBI has ;dent;@*ed_;h&s man Aas Alexander

Inshakov.) Inshakov's group handles the most important and
difficult of IVANKOV's criminal operations. Inshakov's chief

assistant is Viktor Serqeyev, a former KGB officer. Sergevev

‘aids InsHakov in murders ordered by IVANKOV including five or

six murders of top ROC figures who "qgt in the wav" of IVANKOV.

Accordlng to CS -1, IVANKOV pays Inshakov s combat brigade a
special allotment of about $10C, 000 per month A member of the
Solntsevskaya organization makes the payments on IVANKOV'
behalf. |

27. IVANKOV began to build his criminal organization;
in the United States ebbut two and one-half years ago. He
recruited many members after he came to the United StatesAin 1992
and has directed his chief ‘lieutenants to establieh bases outside
the former Soviet Union. Notably,'IVANKOV's son, Eduard Ivankov,
a/k/a "Edik" is based in’Vienna Austria and conducts a w1de
array of f1nanc1a1 and banklng transactions throughout Central

and Western Europe (including England) in an effort to launder
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proceeds of IVANKOV's illegal activitijes. Eduard Ivankov
contacts IVANKOV regularly through a cellular teléphohe.

28. Among the front companies that IVANKOV uses to
conduct his criminal activities and launder criminal procecds are
"Atkom," which is based in Vienna; "Ritual," a funeral services
company in Moscow; and "Arbat,International,ﬁ which is also based
invMoscow. IVANKOV uses Arbat to transmit large sums of money
from Moscow to a company in Budapest, Hungary overseen by "Seva*
Mogielevich, one of IVANKOV}S closest asSociates. |

2. IVANKOV's Illegal Deallngs with Anzor Kikalishvili,
Joseph . Kobzon and JOSEPH SIGALOV

29. According to Cs-1, IVANKOV and his organization
have become more closely allied in recent months with a criminal
group headed by Anzor Kikalishvili aﬁd‘his partner Jcseph Kobzon.
\Kikalishvili and Kobzon receive.substantial illicit paymehts from
- an American'joint~venture company calledV"Russian—American,"
Eased in New York City.‘ Robzon is a leading singer and performer
in Russia. Kobzon and Kikalishvili\were associated with otari
Kvantreshvili,la powerfgl ROC figure assassinated by sniper fire
in Moscow in April 1994.

30 Kobzon Klkallshv111 and Kvantreshvili pald bribes

and klcknacks to a Ru581an Customs official in return ‘for

lucratlve special permits which allow Russian-American to import

several alcohol and tobacco products into Ru551a w1thout paylng

the usual duties. Under the guise of paying for security

services, Russian-American pays Kobzon and Kikalishvili for
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obtaining these permits and for "protectingﬁ Ruégian—American's’

lucrative business.&/

31. According to CS-1, JOSEPH SIGALOV is a Canadian
businessman and an important associate of the Kobzoh-KikalishVili
ROC group. CS-1 described SIGALOV as a broker of "qﬁick turn-
aroﬁnd".deéis supported by Kobzon. CS-1 héardjthat one such'deal'
invOived’the shipment of weapons and'military equipment,
'including machine guns and anti-aircraft defense systems, worth
from $18 miilion to $20 million, from Germany.to_an Arab entity
via Africa.

32. According to CS-1, another individual involved iﬁ
this transaction was.Alimjah T0chtachﬁnov, who wofks clgsely with
Kikélishvili and Kobzon in their‘company called "Association XXI
Century, " which,vlike Russian—American,‘imports alcohol and
- tobacco into Russia without paying the usual duties. As with
Russian-American, Kikalishvili and Kobzon obtained these pérmité
by paying b:ibes and kickbacks to a high-ranking'Russiaq Customs

official.

§/ Another confidential source ("CS$-2") was interviewed on
March 16, 1995. CS-2 stated to that Joseph Kobzon also heads an
operation that places premium brand labels on bottles of low-
quality vodka and exports this counterfeit vodka from Russia to
the United States. ‘ :

CS-2 has been a confidential source for less than one year.
CS-2's information has been corroborated by physical '
‘surveillances, other confidential "sources, . electronic :
surve%llance and independent evidence obtained by law enforcement
agencies.
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3. Other Information from CS~1
33. CS“1‘has:provided a wealth of other information

about IVANKOV's past and present criminal act1v1t1es and

assoc1atlons. Set forth below are several events and crlmlnal

schemes in which independent evidence obtained by the FBI, RCMP

or other law enforcement agencies corroborate information from

CS=1. This evidence, viewed as a whole, demonstrates the

reliability of CS-1's information and probable cause to conclude

that IVANKOV is using the SUBJECT TELEPHONE in furtherance of the

criminal offenses specified in ¢ % above.

D.  IVANKOV'S Current Extortion of
Summit International and its Officers

1. Information from CS-1
34. In or about March 1995, cS-1 advised FBI'agents

that IVANKOV had targeted a company called Summit International

("Summit"), based in New York City, and its officers for an

extortion demand. Summit is an investment advisory firm led by
Alexander Volkov, a Moscow native who has lived in the United
States for several years, and Vladimir Voloshin. Because of its

recent success, IVANKOV has monitored the company and is

_currently demanding that Summlt pay IVANKOV and his workers $5

mllllon or else Volkov and Voloshin would be k111ed

35. In February 1995, according to cs—1, IVANKOV's
representatives contacted Volkov and Voloshin, who agreed to‘a
meeting aﬁ Summit's Wall Street offices for February 23, 1995.

At the appointed time, Volkov and Voloshin fled when they saw

"2

5
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that IVANKOV hlmself had arrived with men, Maxim LNU and Roustam
LNU. Volkov went to Florlda, Volosh’n to San Francisco. IVANKOV
then ordered his workers to begin calling both Volkov and
Voloshin to make explicit demands for a percentage of Summit‘s
business. | , _

36. 'According'tovcs-l IVANKOV's current extortion'
_demand grew out of the follow1ng transactlon' in the Sprlng of
1994, a: hlgh-ranklng official of a financial concern in Russia
1nvested $2.7 million dollars with Summit, which would receive a
commission for its serv1ces.‘ In or about August 1994, this
investor began to experience flnanc1al problems and he advised
‘Volkov that he would recelve a call from another individual who
was the actual owner of the $2.7 million and would identify
himself by using certain key words in conversation. Volkov
received such a call, and the true owner told Volkov to return
the money to him at the end of the year.

37. In the Fall of 1994, the original investor &ied,
and Volkov began receiving calls‘from Roustam and Maxim, who ;
- tried to convince Volkov to share the $2.7'million with them in
view of the original 1nvestor s death. In February 1995 Roustam
and Maxim contacted IVANKOV in New York on the recommendation of
Alexander Inshakov, ‘the leader of IVANKOV's "combat brigade"
group. As noted above, Volkov and Voloshin failed to appear at. a
| meetlng with IVANKOV Subsequently, someone advised Volkov that
"Yaponchlk" [IVANKOV] had personally taken charge of their case;

thgt they now owed him $5 million; and that they were going to
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have "problems" due to their failure to meet with IVANKOV.

2. Information from Volkov and Voloshin

38. Since learning of the Summit extortion, FBI agents
have debriefed Volkov and Voloshin and corroborated the
information‘orovided_by cs-1. FBI agents have also obtained
records of telephohe calls to the SUBJECT TELEPHONE which
corroborate the 1nformatlon prov1ded by Volkov, Voloshin and CS-1

and strongly indicate the SUBJECT TELEPHONE'S use in furtherance

of criminal activity.

39. Volkov confirmed the substance of CS-1's

‘statements concerning the $2.7 million dollar investment with

Summit; the subsequent financial difficulties of the investor;
and the persistent efforts to extort money from himself and
Voloshin. Specifically, on the day after the investor's death,

in November 1994, Volkov received a telephone call from Roustamn

Sadykov, someone he had previously met in.Russia, who said that

hg had important news that he wanted to discuss in person rather
than over the telephone. Volkov had subsequent meetings with
Sadykov and two other 1nd1v1duals ~=- Maxim Korostlshevsky and
Vladlmlr Topko.

40. In or about Novemoér 1994 the three men proposed
that Volkov and Voloshin give 6v percent of the $2.7 mllllon

investment to them and keep the remainder for themselves; the

. three men could guarantee no "aggravation" afterward. 1In a

meeting shortly before Christmas, Sadykov, Korostishevsky and

another individual, Valery Novak, pPresented two documents to
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Volkov intended to effect the proposed dispOsitioh of the moneys; "
the documents appeared to Volkov to be fraudulent; Novak toid
Volkov that "we cah't‘wait ahy longer. - We want the money." Bﬁt
Volkov resisted nonetheless, insisting on meetlng with the boss
of the three men. Volkov and Voloshin noticed that Novak's hands
were shaking, and that he appeared very upset at the refusal to
accede to his wishes. | |

| 41. 1In January and February 1995, Volkov began to -
receive regular calls from Korostlshevsky at hlS home and office
1n which Korostishevsky told Volkc" that he had to make a
"decision" and that they. should have a personal meetlng In
~early February, Volkov s wife adv1sed him that she had been
approached in the supermarket‘by.a-woman who told her she should
expect a lot of trouble in the'future.

42. On February 21, 1995, Volkov recelved a telephone
call from Korostlshevsky, in which the latter said that it was |
very important that they meet that day. Volkov agreed to meet
him, together with Voloshin at Summit's offices at 5:30 p.m.
Despite their agreement to meet,'Korostishevsky called a short
‘time later to confirm it. Volkov and Voloshin became suspicious
over Korostlshevsky s behav1or and ~decided not to go to the
meeting unless he arrlved alone. A short time before
Korostlshevsky was supposed to arrlve, Volkov and Voloshin went
to a retail offlce across from the entrance to the building where
Summit was located so that they could observe who.appeared for

the meeting. At 5:30 p.m., they saw Roustam Sadykov;
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Korostishevsky, an unidentified man and IVANKOV. They recognized
‘IVANKOV from‘newspaper photographe as a leading ROC figure.
Since that time, Volkov and Voloshin have separately been shown

photographs of IVANKOV, and they 1dent1f1ed hlm as one of the men

who appeared for the meetlng

43. Out of fear due to IVANKOV's involvement in the
exte;tlon, Volkov and Voloshin fled to Florida. Volkov has since
listened to numerous messages left on his home telephone by
Korostlshevsky and Sadykov suggesting that they meet. The last
call was on March 4.

44, Thoﬁgh somewhat less involved than Volkov in this
series of meetings and conversations, Voloshin confirmed the
basic sequence and substance of the events described by CS-1 and
Volkov. He added that since the time he fled to Florida in late:
- February, he has received 10 to 15 calls from unknown peréons at
his New York residence. He has also received two calls from
Sadykov.. On the first occasion, Sadykov asked.Veloshin's wife
whether she khew where he and Volkov were at the time. On the
seéond occasion, March 4 or 5, Sadykov again asked where Voloshin
was. Sadykov indicated that he was in Boston and would call
again later. About two ho three weeks after the aborted meeting,
Volkov told Voloshin that Sadykov had contacted Volkov's sister,
who lives with her two children in Moscow. According to Volkov(
Sadykov said that he called merely to say hello. Both Volkov and
Veloshin viewed the call as a thinly veiled threat: if they did

(
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not give IVANKOV the money he was seeking, they and their
‘families would be in danger; -

45. Recently, Voloshln adv1sed the FBI that on or
about March 15, 1995, he had recelved a telephone message at his
home: asklng hlm to call two men at a hotel in the Mlaml, Florida
area regardlng "work " Volko" adv1sed me that he knows one of
these men by the‘nlckname'"Vorona" {the "Crow"], who is a member
of the'Lyuberetskaya'criminal organization based in Moscow, .and
that the other one may also be a member of the Lyuberetskaya
»organization. Based on the investigation to date and my
experience, I believe that IVANKOV ie asing an old acquaintance
of Volkov's to reestablieh contact with him and impress upon |
Volkov the need to comply with IVANKOV's demands.

3. Physical Surveillance and Telephone Records

46. Volkov and Voloshin provided a description of the

unidentified man who arrived.with IVANKOV, Roustam,Sadykov‘and
Maxim Korostishevsky in late February 1995. ﬁased on this
description, FBI agents showed Volkov and Voloehin a photograph
Of}a man whom other agentS-had observed meeting with IVANKOV in
the Brighton»Beach area on March 10, 1995. Volkov and Voloshin
separately 1dent1f1ed thls man as -the same person who arrived
with IVANKOV for the meeting in February 1995.

47. Based on information from Volkov I have also
examined records from the Welllngton Hotel in Manhattan and |
determlned that Roustam Sadykov was staying in a room there

between February 17 and February 24 1995 -- the very period in
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which Sadykov was'seeking to arrange the meeting between Volkov
and IVANKOV. Telephone records for Sadykov's room reveal thatvhe_
called the SUBJECT TELEPHONE on February 22 and February 23.1%1/

E. IVANKOV'S Current Involvement in Drug Deallnq

1. Informatlon from cs-1

48. According to €S-1, IVANKOV's organization smuoglee-
and distributes drugs. cs-1 provided information concerning
.IVANKOV's rivals in the drug business and the violence that has
resulted from competltlon with these rivals.

. 49. In or about July 1994, IVANKOV became involved in
a dlspute w1th Sergei Ivanov1ch Timofeyev, a/k/a "Sylvester "
| then involved in a large part of Moscow! s drug trade and a 1eader
in the "Orekhovo~Bor1sov" criminal organlzatlon based in Moscow:
The dispute arose from a bu51ness deal in which Timofeyev accused
"IVANKOV's son "Edlk" of shortlng him;about-$3oo 000. Timofeyrv
was murderedthz_a car bomb_in Moscow in September 1994.. cs-1
belleves that IVANKOV ordered the killing as part of his effor;l
to dominate ROC operatlons in Europe and the United States.
Baesad in Cyprus, Tlmofeyev haa evtene1ve contacts with Monya

Elson, a leading ROC flgure in New York.8/ 1n or about Januaryb

l/lThe telephone records also revealed 17 calls to the Marriott
Marquis in Manhattan. According to Volkov, Korostishevsky and
Sadykov often stayed at the Marriott Marquis Hotel in Manhattan
durlng their trlps to New York.

8/ Monya Elson was the head of a major ROC group in the Unlted
States, located in Brighton Beach., Since 1992, when IVANKOV
first came to Brlghton Beach, IVANKOV has attempted to take
control of ROC in Brighton Beach In early March 1995, Elson was
carrested in Italy bursuant to an indictment returned in the
Southern District of New York. The indictment charges Elson with
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1995, IVANKOV told Viktor Averin and Sergei ﬁikhaylov, co-leaders
of the Solntsevskaya-oréanization, that they would be taking over
the'Qorkefs and locations formerly controlled by Timofeyev.
| 50. Dzhemal Konstantinovich Khachidze controls the
impoftation and.distfibﬁtien of drugs into and within Moscow
_ﬁﬁrough akcombat brigade, eonsiSting of 10-15 enforcers, who make
regular colleetions from drug traffickers in Moscow. Khachidze
'is/reputed to have ordered the January 1994 murder of Oleg
Karotaev in Brighton Beach in connectiqn with a dispute over a’
multi-million dollar cocaine shipment to Russia. Since the Fall
. of 1994, IVANROV has been erganizing an effort to chellenge
Khachidze and seek to dominate drug distribgtion in Moscow.

51. Curfently;‘IVANKOVland the Solntsevskaya -
organization are conducting joint drug smuggling and distribution
operations in Russia. 1In or aboﬁt,Janﬁary 1995, Sergei
Mikhaylov, co-leader of the Solntsevskaya Organization, advised
his principal workers that he had found a new soufce for larée
shipments of cocaihe‘to Russia, but fhat IVANKOV and his wofkers
were not to know of any shlpments or aeallngs arranged w1th this
source. Mlkhaylov 1ntended to keep these dealings 1ndependent

" from the joint operatlons with IVANKOV

the murders of two individuals and narcotics traffiéking;
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2. Other Information About IVANKOV's Drug Dealing

52. Oh‘March;ZO, 1995, another confidenfial source
("CS-3")2/ told the FBI that he had recently spoken with -
énother son of IVANKOV's, Gennadiy Ivahkqv, a/k/a “Gena."
According to CS-3, IVANKOV is one of six leaders of a large
international drug trafficking o;ganization. Gennadiy is
_presently laundering drug proceeds for IVANKOV: According to CS-~
'3, IVANKOV can be‘reached by phone at (917) 859-2012 (the SUBJECT
TELEPHONE) . CS;3 also told the FBI that Felix Komarov is
'p;esently laundefing money for IVANKQY, though CS-3 does ﬁét know
thé particulars of Komarov's involvement.

53. On February 9, 1995, another confidential source )
("CS-4") told the FBI that IVANKOV has at ieast four cellular
telephones and appeérs to speak on some more than others.9/
CS-4 believes that Felix Komarov has a phone number for IVANKOV
because Komarov placed a call to IVANKOV on the morning of
Februafy 9, 1994 and spoke with him.‘ On March 15, 19§5, CS{4
advised us that IVANKOV can;bé reached a. the SUBJECT TELEFHONE.

According to CS-+, Komarov's close criminal relations with

IVANKOV may be deteriorating because, among other things, he may

2/ CS-3 has been a confidential source for law enforcement for
less than one year. CS-3's information has always proved to be
reliable and has been corroborated by physical surveillances,
other confidential sources and independent evidence obtained by
the FBI and other law enforcement agencies.

19/  ¢s-4 has been a confidential source for less than one year.
CS-4's ‘information has proven reliable and has been corroborated
by physical surveillances, other confic¢eontial sources and :
independent evidence obtains by the FBI and other law enforcement
agencies. '



not be as involved in IVANKOV's organization as he c.ice was.
However, in Moscow Komarov'is still considered to be a close

associate of IVANKOV.

(%4v~vGerman law enforcement officials have advised the

- FBI that Komarov is a long-time, close associate of IVANKOV who

launders money for IVANKOV in New York. CS-1 has also advised

FBI agents that Komarov is the owner of a Rolls Royce dealership

'1n Moscow in which IVANKOV, Sergel Mlkhaylov and Viktor Averin

have 25 percent 1nterests, respectlvely. Accordlng to CS-1, the

dealership is losing money and is merely a front used by IVANKOV

and the Solntsevskaya organization to launder proceeds from

dllegal activities.

éﬁ ,High-ievgl ROC Meeting in Puerto Rico in January 1995

1. Information from CS-1
55. In or about December 1994, CS-1 learned that a

high-level meeting of ROC leaders would take place in either New

‘York City or Miami, in January or February 1995. At or about?the

time of the actual meetlngs -- between January 3, and January 8,
1995 -- CS-1 adv1sed the FBI that the locatlon of the meeting had
been changed to San Juan, Puerto RlCO. According to Cs-1, the

principal leaders of major ROC groups, 1nclud1ng some of the top

-“thleves 1n law," were supposed to attend thls meetlng, 1nclud1ng

the follow1ng° IVANKOV Mikhaylov, Averin and Arnold Tamm from
the Solntsevskaya organization, Khachidze, and ROC 1eaders from

Geordla and St. Petersburg organlzatlons
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'56. According to CS-1, the meeting was called to

' discuss several important. issues, including ‘the following: (i)
dividing the'"spbils" of theeorganizetion formerly headed by
Sergei Ivanovich Timofeyev (murdered in September 1994); (ii) the
future division of the drug distribution business in Russ1a,
(111) complaints among other bosses about IVANKOV'S efforts to
'ycontrol the drug trade in Ru551a, (iv) concerns of several bosses
‘that IVANKOV was behind recent murders of police officers in
Russia} and (v) a dispute between IVANKOV and Ruslan Labazenov,

" the leader of a major_chechen ~riminal organizatioh) over

IVANKOV's reputed theft of Russian rubles worth about $10 million

(U.S. currency). .

2. Information from the RCMP Electronic Surveillance
=== fiaLlon lrom the RCMP Flectronic Surveillance

57. Through electronic surveillance conducted in |
Canada, the RCMP and FBI learned that a meeting of the sort Cs-1
described was to take place in san Juan, Puerto Rico and
conducted surveillance of variouS‘ROC'figures in and around the
hotel where they were staying. The evidence gathered pursuent to
the RCMP and FBI investigations, including papers containingAthe
SUBJECT TELEPHONE number, further confirms the reliability of cs-
1's lnformatlon regardlng IVANKOV's 1nvolvement in RoOC
activities.

_58. Sevefal conversations were intercepted regarding a
meeting to be held in early‘January 1995 in Puerto Rico. kBased
on these conversations, the RCMP agents superv1s1ng the

electronlc surveillance concluded that one of the chief topics to

-



29
be discussed at the meeting was the.ordering‘of oné or more
murders in furtherance o§ criminal activities. The following are-
summaries of portions of intercepted conversations concerning ﬁhe
'meeting in Puerto Rico. |

Va." On December 6, 1994 at 8:32 p.m., JOSEPH SIGALOV
'quke_first with "Mark" and then witﬁ his ex-wife "Rossiya"
["Russia"]. SIGALOV told Rossiyé that Kobzon still did not have
'.hls Amerlcan visa, but that Kobzon expected to get it in time for

the tr1p : Referrlng to an individual named "Marik," SIGALOV also
- told Rossiya that he had just retJ*“ed from-Marlk's motherland,
and that it turned out that Marik was the chief thief there.
SIGALOV said that he had a successful trip, having secured yet
another world famous shop for himself, and would have about
300,000 [dollars] by Christmas. SIGALOV also told Rossiya that
he was going to St. Maarten and from there he and Alexandra Pelts
[his common-law.wife]‘were going to Puerto Rico to meet with "
"Yosif Kobson," a/k/a Joseph Kobzon. |

‘ b.  On December 11, 1934, at 11:43 a.m. , JOSEPH
SIGALOV was 1ntercepted speaklng to Nellia Mlkhallovna LNU,
Kobzon's wife. SIGALOV said that he had ordered the tickets from
 St. Maarten to Puerto Rico. SIGALOV told Nellia that he was
scheduled to arrive in_Puerto‘Riéo on January 3, 1995 at 5:00
p.m.

| c; - On December li, 1994 at'lizso a.m.,;SIGALOV spoké

with an unidentified male ("UM"). The UM said that Kishinevsky

should be fined, and SIGALOV agreed. The UM said SIGALOV should
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send Yuri Fooks [according to the RCMP, a Toronto ROC figure], or.

others; Zhenya could be sent, and he would be cheaper, and nobody

knows him. SIGALOV said that it doesn't matter whether anyone

knows. If someone wants to eat at hlS table, 1t's wrong.

'SIGALOV said that he would show him, the son of a bitch. SIGALOV

A .
* including supplying frozen bagels to a metallurgical plant in

sald that he had already called Yosif [Kobzon] and told him what
the situation is, and SIGALOV's godfather [Kobzon, according to
‘the RCMP] told him that it is wrong and it has to be punlshed

d. On December 13, 1994 at 9 53 a.m., SIGALOV spoke w1th
Larisa, his ex-sister—in -law. SIGALOV told her that he was g01ng

to Puerto Rico for a meetlng with "Yaponets, Taiwanets, to

dlscuss whom we will kill, fuck." SIGALOV spoke with Larisa .
about a number of topics in addition to the possible killings.
SIGALOV said that his annual turnover is about $40 million. He

also described a number of businesses in which he was involved,

Lipetsk, a sunflower oil press, a sewing shop selling jackets, a
- print shop, a restaurant two brick kilns, all of which were

fully paid for. He also bought a two-story building in downtown

Kharkov [in the Ukraine), which he bought. through bribes.

e. "Yaponets," which means "Japanese" in Russian, is
another name for IVANKOV. :“Yaponchik,ﬂ IVANKOV's most common
nickname, is a diminutive form of Yaponets. Based on information
from several confidential sources and law enforcement officers in
Germany, I have learned that "Talwanets," which means "Talwanese"t

in Russian, is the nlckname of Alimjan Tochtachunov, an associate
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- of Kobzon and Kikalishvili in their various illegal activities
(see § 32 above). Based on this information, I have also learned

that Tochtachunov was the leading ROC figure in Gefmany
(specifically, Cologne) until pressure from German investigators
caused him to move to Paris, France, where he now lives and

continues to conduct such ill=gal activities as military

;éQuiﬁment smuggling and money laundering.

~f.  On December 21, 1994, at 5:10 p.m., SIGALOV
received avtelephone call from Alexgndér Donskoi.l/ sIiGALOV
said that Dimitri Yakoubovski had been arrested in Moscow
yesterday.about.something having to do with Germany and weapons;
Donskoi said "to hell with him." Donskoi said tﬁat he had spoken
with Yosif [Kobzon] a couple of days ago and would call him
tonight. SIGALOV asked whether everything was confirmed for San
J1an, and Donskoi said yes. SIéALOV‘said'that he wantéd to know
about Kobzon as he was going to.San Juan because of them [Donskoi‘
and others]. N

59. Based on informaticn received from the RCMP, ‘other

"FBI agents contactedVVarious hotels in San Juan, Puerto Rico to

discover where the scheduled meeting would take place. We
determined that several of the individuéis either interecepted or
mentioned over the Canadian wiretap had réservations at the El
San Juan Hotel and Casind, Carretera Isla Verda No. 4, San Juan, §

Puerto Rico.

11/  The FBI has obtained information that Donsk01 worked at a
furniture store in Brooklyn that served as the base of operations
for a her01n trafflcker.
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3. FBI Surveillance and Seizures at the San Juan Hotel.

60. FBI agents conducted surveillance.at-the hotel
from-approximately January 3, 1995 to January 15, 1995. On
January 3, agents observed the following people arrive at the
hotel: Joseph Kobzon and family members, JOSEPH SIGALOV and
family members and Alexander Donskoi and his girlfriend. Over
the next several days, agents observed SIGALOV, Kobzon and
" Donskoi engage in brief conversations in the public areas of the
hotel and casino. Agents also observed SIGALOV meeting with an
unidentified Hispanic man in the notel. On one occasion, an
agent could overhear Donskoi, speaking in Russian, say to the
SIGALOV, in substance, "tell him [the Hispanic man)] it's none of
his business how much I'm making on the deal." On another
occasion, agents saw SIGALOV meeting this man at the San Juan
airport and overheard them agree to see each other in Toronto
soon.. SIGALOV and Donskoi left the hotel on or about January 8,
1995. Kobzon left}severai days later but then returned. He left
the hotel again on January 15. H

61. On January 12, 1995, agents examined trash left
outside Kobzon's hotel room. Among the papers they seized nere
two items llnklng Kobzon and his as5001ates to IVANKOV. On a
piece of note paper FBI observed the initials "VK" and the
telephone number (917) 859-2012 (the SUBJECT TELEPHONE number) .
Based on my experience and the investigation to date, I believe

that "VK" stands for "VYACHESLAV KIRILLOVICH," IVANKOV's first
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and patronymic names,12/ Agents'also found a matchbook on
which the number of the SUBJECT TELEPHONE was written and then
crossed out. | |
| “62. Other FBI agerits have also examined telephone
records from Kobzon's San Juan hotel room. The recorde reveal
two ealls to‘tﬁe SUBJECT TELEPHONE on Januery 14, 1995.

i 63. On January'éa, 1995, other FBI agents observed
IVANKOV meeting four men in the Sheepsheaq.ﬁay‘area of.Brooklyn.
IVANKOV and the others drove around ﬁhe area and at times got oﬁt
of the car and spoke with one another. During this surveillance,
agents ebserved IVANKOV using a cellular telephone.

- G. Calls Intercepted Over RCMP Wiretap in March 1995, Relating
to IVANKQV and the SUBJECT TELEPHONE . ' L

64. Begihning in early Mafch 1995, tﬁe RCMP began
intercepting cohveféations which indicate that’iVANKOV has been
discussing an ongoing.financielldispute, ovef the SUBJECT
- TELEPHONE, with VYACHESLAV SLIVA, a/k/a "SlaQa,%xan ROC figure;
based in Toronto and»an associate of JOSEPH SIGALOV. 1In or abdﬁt‘
September 1994, the MVD. advised me that.VYACHESLAV SLIVA was in
contact with IVANKOV and may have been involved in the attempted
murder of an editor of ﬂIzvestiya," a leading‘newspepef in
Moscow. According to the RCMP, SLiVA is also IVANKOV's brother-

in-law. CS-4 informed FBI agents that SLIVA, an ethnic AssYrian,.

is a very good friend of IVANKOV.

13/ A person's patronymic name is formed by combining the first
name of that person's father with the suffix "ovich" for a man,
and "ovna" for a woman. it is common in Russia to address people
by their first and patronymic names, without using a surname.
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65. On March 6, 1995, at 2:04 p.m., SLIVA received an
vincoming telephone call from "Yura™ LNU. Yura told SLIVA that
"Yasha has a whole city, there sits Valera (an Armenian). Valera
brings money directly tb Yasha." In June 1994, cs-2 had told *the
FBI that an individual by the name of Vadik Valera assisted
IVANKOV in a large money laundering operation; According to Cs-
2,ciVANKOV pléced money he had made from illegal arms trafficking
into various "shell" corporations. CS-2 also believed that
Valera ob£ained ﬁ;ney through extortionate means from the Avtovas
Factory, a major Russian car and truck manufacturer.

66. On March 8, 1995, at 7:06 p.m., SLIVA received a
teléphone call from "alik," who, based on the investigation to
date and information from the RCMP, I believe to be Alimjan
Tochtachuﬁév, a/k/a "Taiwanese." Alik told SLIVA that "that
faggot, Monya Elson got arrested in’Italy and they are bringing
him to New York." Alik asked SLIVA to tell "dyed" ["grandpa")
about it."13/ SLIVA told Alik to "be careful because the guy 5
who got arrested knows where YOu [(Alik] Qélk." Based on my
experience and the investigation to date. I believe that
- "grandfather" is a nickpame fof IVANKOV, and‘that SLIVA and Alik
are-COncerned that Elson would cooperate with law enforcement
-authorities and thereby bose a danader to themselves. | |

67. On March 11, 1995, at 5:53 p.m., the RCMP

intercepted an outgoing call to the SUBJECT TELEPHONE. Based on

13/ 7The RCMP intercepted several other conversations referring
to "dyed." 1In one of the conversations, the speaker makes it
clear that "dyed" is a nickname for IVANKOV.

-~
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~their voices and the way the speakers identified one.another,'the
RCMP COncluded'that "Edik,"- a nephew of IVANKOV, placed'the call
. from Toronto to his uncle. Edik said that “Cena" would meet with
him (IVANKOV):in May, to which'IVANROV replied that he was sick
and tired of going back and forth with thls guy. SLIVA then got
on the phone in Toronto. He said that SIGALOV was now in Ru551a
and would be back at the end of the month. (The RCMP told the
FBI that SIGALOV's itinerary for the end of March included
Lipetsk, Kharkov, and Moscow). SIGALOV also said that'“Genaf
- swore that he'd been paying. SIGALOV also told SLIVA that
'SIGALOV "met there with Anton and Aksyonov." The MVD has
informed the FBI that Anton Malevsky and Vyaceslav AKsynov are
leaders of ROC groups based in Moscow;.: |

68. On March 11, 1995 at 6:00 p.m., SLIVA called
IVANKOV over the SUBJECT TELEPHONE. "Gena" got on the telephone
and.sworeghls alleglance to IVANKOV and insisted that he did not
do it; "Edik" then got on the phone and asked IVANKOV what he
~should tell "Ydra " IVANKOV said ‘that he would get back to Edlk
about it. IVANKOV and Edik then discussed a meeting between
IVANKOV and Gena scheduled for May 1995.

69. Based on thelr experience and the investigation to
‘date, RCMP officers believe that SLIVA reports to and receives
orders fron IVANKOV. RCMP officers aiso beliete that IVANKOV,
SLIVA and other:interceptees have been discussing the collectionv
.of proceeds from 1llegal act1v1t1es in Russia on behalf of

IVANKOV. Specifically, SLIVA and IVANKOV have been concerned
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that either "Gena" or “Yura"'had:not been éaying the Amounts oL
money owed IO IVANKOV's organxzatlon. Gena appears to have
satlsfled IVANKOV and SLIVA that he has not done anythlng wrong,
and that IVANKVV and SLIVA now suspect yura.

70. on March 15, 1995, at 11:49 a.m. Natalla bubikova,-
SLIVA's girlfrlend, ‘received a telephone call on SLIVA'S |
telephone from Faina Komisar, IVANKOV'S glrlfrlend (see ﬂ 73
pelow) . Dubikova told Komisar that wSLIVA is absolu*ely helpless
here. There is no one here he can trust." Dubikova said that
Iehe "thiﬁk[s] that SLIVA and IVANKOV may not be authorities any
more." Based on my experienee and the investigation to date, I
pelieve that wauthorities" ﬁeans‘leaders of ROC. |

71. on March 15, 1995, at 10:58 p.m. IVANKOV made an

incoming call to SLIVA, and the two nen complained about law

‘enforcement'crackdowns,en,ROC. SLIVA said that "I don't call

pecause I hear lots of news and I don't want tobdisturb you
[IVANKQV]." SLIVA said that the "[s]tlnklng pastards (law
enforcement] . . - have been bugging me since my childhood," to
which IVANKOV responded that it was "[b]ecause we were against
the Soviets." SLIVA agreed, replying ‘that "we didn't serve in
the army when we were supposed to." Based on my experlence and
the jnvestigation to date, I belleve that the "news“ SLIVA
referred to is that of Monya Elson's arrest in early March 1995
and news reports about ROC, partlcularly IVANKOV. In mld-March,'
cable Network News ran a show focu51ng on IVANKOV s 1eadership of

ROC in the Unlted states. I also belleve that the reference to

Exhibit C
Exhibit D
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IVANROV has directed his criminal éssbciates to’ leave messages
with IRENE KOMISAR who relays the messages to IVANKOV.14/
IVANKOV then contacts the individual directly to discuss his
criminal activity or arrange a meeting. IVANKOV often uses a
particular cellular telephone for a short period of time before

he obtains a new one (see § 53 above).

75. On March 3, 1995, United States Magistrate Judge -

~Marilyn D. Go issued an order authorizing the installation of pen

registers and caller‘identification devices on telephone numbers
(718) 946-2504 and (715; 445-2273. Although a request wvas made
to execute the order, the pen register and caller identification 
devices were not installed until March 22, 1995 ang March 7,
1995, respectively. Earlier, on December 7, 1994, Magistrate
Judge Go issued an order authorizing the installation of a pen
register on (718) 449-2273,

76. A review of records from the pen register on (718)
449-2273 reveals that,between January 29, 1995 and February 4,_f
1995, ten (16) calls were placed to the SUBJECT TELEPHONE and
that between March 24, 1995 and March 26,~1995, nine (9) éalls
were placed to the SUBJECT TELEPHONE. On March 25, 1995, the
Calis were placéd at 7:53 p.m.,,7:33 p.m., 7:37 p.m. and 7:39

p.m. On March 26, 1995, the calls were placed at 12:04 p.m.,

14/ eg-s has been a confidential source for less than three
years. CS-5's information has been proven reliable and has been
corroborated by physical surveillances, other sources, electronic
surveillances and other independent evidence obtained by law
enforcement agencies. CS5-5's information has also been used in
electronic surveillance applications which have generated
evidence of RoOC. ' :
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12:10 a.m;, 1:33 a.m. and 1:34 a.m. Based upon‘my experience ahd
my review of the confidential source informatioﬁ'and telephone
records in this éase, I believe that IVANKOV receives messages
from IRENE_KOMISAR on the SUBJECT‘TELEPHONE and that IVANKOV uses
the SUBJECT TELEPHONEVto respond to the messagerleft by his
criminal associates.v

77. On March 3, 1995;.ﬁnited States Magistrate Judge
‘Marilyn D. Go issued an order directing Cellular One to provide
contemporaneous biiling information for the SUBJECT TELEPHONE.
-The_FBI has thus far received no r;cords of calls made to or from
the SUBJECT TELEPHONE. We have béen advised by Cellular One that
the absence ofvrecords is not the result of IVANKOV'S non-use of
the SUBJECT TELEPHONE but, i:ather,_IVANKov's use of the SUBJECT
TELEPHONE outside Cellular One's sérvice area in and around New
Yurk. However, Cellular One has told the FBI that in or about
March 1995, IVANKQV has used the SUBJECT TELEPHONE in the Denver,
Colorado area. Curréntly, when a cellular telephone is outside
fhis area, call details are not available for a period up to
eight weeks. FBI technicians are now seeklng to obtain ordlnary
.bllllng information on a contemporaneous basis.

ALTERNATIVE INVESTIGATION TECHNIQUES HAVE BEEN TRIED
AND FAILED OR APPEAR  UNLIKELY -TO SUCCEED IF TRIED

" 78. The goals of this investigation are set forth in
paragraph 9(c) above; Several investigative techniques havé»been
tried ana failed, or reasonably appear‘likely to fail to achieve
all the goals qf this inQestigaﬁion if tried and are too

dangerous to employ.
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79. Physical surveillance of the movements of IVANKOV

and his associates has been of limited success. On several

occasions, surveillance agents have been able to make fleeting
observatlons of IVANKOV meeting w1th some of his associates.
However, these surveillances have not provided and are not
expected to prov1de detailed, comprehen51ve ev1dence regarding
the nature and scope of the criminal act1v1t1es of the individual

currently using the SUBJECT TELEPHONE. For instance, as

discussed above, IVANKOV has numerous associates in this country

and abroad with whom he rarely, if at all, meets in person. One -

of the purposes of seeking the present order with respect to the
SUBJECT TELEPHONE is to obtain evidence concernlng the associates
of IVANKOV in his criminal act1v1t1es.‘

80. Moreover, intensive survelllance is llkely to
alert IVANKOV or other individuals in possession of the SUBJECT
TELEPHONE that his' activities are being monitored and could
result in the temporary cessation of illegal activities or a
change in methods. In mid—1994 LVANKOV's name began to appear
in w1dely circulated reports and articles which identified him as
the head of ROC in the United States. Prior to the media blltz
the FBI was able to conduct more effectlve surveillance of
IVANKOV in the New York area. As the publicity began to
intensify, IVaNkov became even nore cautious and largely
disappeared from sight. In the past month alone there have been
major reports on the Cable News Network in which IVanxov was

again identified as a leading ROC figure. As in the past,



41
IVANKOV reacted by staying away from New York and, at a minimum,
becoming more guarded in his movements (see § 72 above).
Although confidential‘sources continue to report his appearance
in various cities across the United States, including Denver,
Milwaukee and Los Angeles, the FBI has had limited success_
conducting physical surveillance of IVANKOV. Ccmmonly we learn
of his presence in a éiven city only after he has moved tova
different one.
| 81. The government cannot obtain sufficient evidence
of the ctiminal activity described herein through physical
surveillance alone. Based upon my experience as an FBi agent,
and my familiarity with this investigation, I believe that drug
dealing, extcrtion and the activities associated with these
crimes -- such as negotlatlons,‘exchanges of drugs and/or money,
- demands for payment, the maklng of threats or actual comm1551on
of violence -- will be made in a covert manner in private areas’
where physical surveillance of those activities would be‘
'difficult or, if successful, would likely disclose the existence
of this 1nvest1gatlon to the subjects and thelr confederates.
Surveillance can identify part1c1pants in meetings between
‘ subjects, but cannot often dlsclose‘any criminal activity. For
example, surveillance will not, in most instances,bbe sufficient
to detect the conveying and carrying out of threatened violence.
82. Seeklng arrest warrants at this time would be
premature in llght of a number of factors, 1nclud1ng the fact

that FBI agents have not yet identified many of the. partlcular
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- individuals to be arrested. -Since its inceptioa; this
inVestigation_hasvfocused onuIVANKOV and his asSociates, We
believe that there are associates of IVANKOV who are operating in
the New York area and elsewhere in the United States and abroau
We believe that evidence of this 1nvolvement in extortnon and
drug,deallng which would identify his associates, and others,

v wiii be obtained through the interception of wire communications
over the SUBJECT TELEPHONE. Thus, we believe that for |
investigative and'proSecutive reasons, it would be premature to
seek arrest warrants at this time.

83. To date, it has not been‘feasible to use
confidential sources on any regular basis to obtaiﬁ evidence
.concerning IVANKOV's'ongoing criminaloconductQ Based\on my
experience and training, I have learned that cfiminal
organizations, especially those engaged in drug dealing and acts‘
of violence, do not have close dealings with individuals unless
they have established these individuals' trustworthiness and
reliability. Such orgahizations do not open themselves.up to
strangers. This hostility to outsiders :s especially strong
amohg ROC éroups due'to, among other factors, their harsh
experiences in Soviet prlsons and their highly suspect positions
kln Soviet society. To the extent +his affidavit relies upon
confidential 1nformation, the sources do not have such access to
the targets of the 1nvest1gation that they could discover all of
’ the targets! criminal activities or ass;ciates. For example, the

sources referred to above have provided historical information
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‘and information about certain of IVANKOV's current activities,

but they have not-been able to describe much of IVANKOV's

~activities and many of his assoc1ates, particularly glven the

complex1ty and gecgraphlcal breadth of many of hls criminal
dealings. Based on my experlence, ROC members typlcally do not
»disqlose'the identity of their associates and, particularly,
their suppliers, to protect their business and security. These
circumstances reinforce the need for electronic sﬁrveillance to
further identify and obﬁain evidence against IVANKOV and his
associates.

84. Telephone toll records and pen reglster data are

of llmlted value. Contemporaneous billing information has been

\dlfflcult to obtain, as explalned above. \Even if it can be

obtained for the SUBJECT TELEPHONE, it will only 1nd1cate the
numbers called from the SUBJECT TELEPHONE. It will not provide
the nature of the communications occurring over the SUBJECT

TELEPHONE or the identities of the speakers participating in

- those communications. Interceptions of conversations over the

SUBJECT TELEPHONE will likely provide evidence of the crimes the:
sgbjects have committed and will commit.

85. The use of search warfants is prematﬁre in light
of the fact, for example, that we have not yet identified
locations to be searched.

86. At this juncture, the use of investigative grand
juricc and interviews would alert the subjects‘to the existence

of the inveétigaticn, and would prevent the government from
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identifying other co-conspirators. The crimes which the
government is investigating wouid not be reveaied solely by
examination of records of those named herein or their
confederates. Furthermore, information gleaned from.the
interception of wire communications may enable us to nake
seizures of either narcotics, records or money from co-

conépirators in such a way that it would not arouse other

suspicions as to the existence of the government's continuing

investigation.

87. Randonm interviews or grand jury appearances of
those named herein and individuals with whom they are kelieved to
be committing the offenses set forth above would not further the
investigation. The named subjects and . thelr confederates are
themselves criminally culpable. Consequently, they will be of
little assistance to the government or the grand Jury Any
interviews or grand jury appearances will likely alert the
subjects to the existence of the investigation prematurely.

88. The use of undercover agents is also not feasible
at this time since the targets of the investigation are generally
not receptive to the introduction of individuals who are outside
their close knit group,(as discussed above. It is nelther safe
nor possible to introduce undercover agents into circumstances
where the agents would be llkely to overhear or observe
activities that would contribute to the procf of the criminal
act1v1t1es of those named herein. As described above, ROC groups

are exceptionally hostlle to outsiders and certalnly unlikely to
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"dlsclose ‘the scope of their act1v1t1es to an undercover offlcer
It is not feasible or 11kely, therefore, that an undercover
officer would be allowed to have such relationships‘with'the
targets of the investigation or would be able to obtain, through
other undercover methods, evidence of the‘targets' criminal
.activities. '
o MINIMIZATION

89. Special Agents of the FBI and other authorized
offlcers and monitors will make only such interceptions as are
consistent with the objectives of this application and the
_Court's orders. All such interceptions w1ll .be mlnlmlzed in
accordance with Chapter 119 of Title 18 United States Code, and
all 1nterceptlons conducted pursuant to thls Court's,Order'will |
dtermlnate upon attalnment_of ‘the authorized objectives or, in any
event, at the end of thirty (30) days measured from the earlier
of_the day on which investigative or law enforcement officers
first begin to conduct an interception under the Court's order or
ten (10) days -after the Order is entered. Monltorlng of
conversatlons will terminate immediately when it is determined
that the conversatlon 1s unrelated to communlcatnons subject to
interception under Chapter 119 of Title 18, United States code.
Interception will be suspended immediately when it is determlned
through voice 1dent1f1catlon physical surveillance, or
otherwise, that none of the named interceptees or a;y of thelr
confederates, when identified, are barticipants in the

conversation, unless it is determined during the portion of the
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conversation aiready overheard.that the conversétion is criminal
ln nature. If the conversation is minimized, monitoring agents
shall spot check to ensure the conversation has not turned to
criminal matters. All individualsvconducting the interéeptionv
will be instructed to minimize privileged communications
including those privileged coﬁmunipétions between an attorney and
hisborvher client or any other recognized privilege.

FOREIGN IANGUAGE EXCEPTION
90. It is anticipated that most of the conversations

to be intercepted will be spoken chiefly in Russian and also

possibly'in Assyrian. TherefOre, it is expected that an expert

in Russian and Assyrian or the coded language will be avallable
for translation and for monitoring purposes during the
interception whenever p0551b1e. In the event that the
expert/translator is not a federal agent, the translator, whether
a language-tralned support employee or under contract to the
government, will be under the supervision of a federal agent.
If, however, such a translator is not reasonably available on the
spot, the following after-the fact mlnlmlzatlon procedures have
been established pursuant to Title 18, United States Code,
Section 2518(5): | |

(A) All such foreign language conversetions will be
intercepted and recorded in their entirety.

(B) As soon as practicable after such 1nterceptlon,
these conversations will be reviewed and minimized by a

translator under the guidance of a federal agent and an English

i
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| translation of the pertinent conversations will he furnished to
the supervising federal agent.

(C) Your affient believes that this nrocedure complles
‘with both the sp1r1t and letter of Sectlon 2518(5), which
prov1des for after-the —~fact minimization where codes or foreign
languages are used by the interceptees and there is no expert
reasonably avallable to translate the conversatlon.

WHEREFORE IT IS HEREBY REQUESTED that Spe01al Agents
of the FBI government employees or 1nd1v1dua1s operatlng under a
contract w1th the government who w1ll be acting under the '
'superv151on of investigative or law enforcement officers
authorized to conduct the 1nterceptlon, be authorlzed to
1ntercept and record the wire communlcatlons of VYACHESLAV
KIRILLOVICH IVANKOV a/k/a "Yaponchlk " EDUARD IVANKOV, a/k/a.
'Ldlk " VYACHESLAV SLIVA, a/k/a "Slava " JOSEPH SIGALOV IRENE
KOMISAR and others as yet unknown .concerning the hereln described ..
offenses, occurring to.and from CELLULAR TELEPHONE NUMBER (917)
859-2012, BEARING ELECTRONIC SERIAL NUMBER C31CB48, SUBSCRIBED TQ-
"BY MEDIA WAVES, 90 WEST STREET, NEW YORK, NEW YORK. |

IT Is FURTHER REQUESTED that the. -authorization apply
not only to the SUBJECT TELEPHONE number listed above, but to any
changed number subsequently a551gned to the same electronlc
serlal number utilizeq by the suUBJEcT TELEPHONE, within the
thlrty,(BO) day period. It is elso requested-that the

authorization apply to background conversations intercepted in
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the v1c1n1ty of the SUBJECT TELEPHONE whlle the SUBJECT TELEPHONE
is off the hook or otherw1se in use.

IT IS FURTHER REQUESTED, pursuant to 18 u.s.c.

§ 2518(3), that in the event that the SUBJECT TELEPHONE is
transported'outside the jurisdiction of this Court, interceptions
may take place in any other jurlsdlctlon within ‘the United
States.

IT IS FURTHER REQUESTED that such interception not
automatlcally terminate when the types of communlcatlons
descrlbed above have first been obtained, but be. permitted to
contlnue until all communications which reveal the manner in
Wthh the subjects of the 1nvest1gatlon and others part1c1pate in
the above described offenses and whlch reveal (i) the nature,

extent and methods of operation of the drug business of"

- VYACHESLAV KIRILLOVICH IVANKOV, a/k/a "Yaponchik," EDUARD

IVANxov, a/k/a "Edik," VYACHESLAV*SLIVA, a/k/a "Slava," JOSEPH
SIGALOV, IRENE KOMISAR and others; (ii) the identities and roles
of accomplices, aiders and abettors, cd-conspirators,
participants and v1ct1ms in their 1llegal act1v1t1es, (111) the
dlstrlbutlon and transfer of the contraband and money 1nvolved in
those activities; (1v) the existence and location of records; (v)
the existence, location and source of resources used to finance
their illegal act1v1t1es, (vi) the existence, locatlon and
disposition of the proceeds from those activities; and (v11) the

ex1stence and locations of 1tems used in furtherance of those

activities; or for a period of thirty (30) days, beginning on the-
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earlier of the day on<which interceptions are first conducted
under the order or ten days after the order is entered whichever
occurs flrst pursuant to 18 U.s.c. § 2518.

IT Is FURTHER REQUESTED that upon the request of the
.United States, Cellular One, communlcatlons serv1ce providers as
bdeflned in 18 U.s.c. § 2510(15), shall furnish the United States
forthw1th all 1nformatlon, fac111t1es and technical assistance
'necessary to accomplish the 1nterceptlon unobtrusively, ‘
expedltlously and with a minimum of interference to the services
that such prov1der is according the persons whose communlcatlons
are to be 1ntercepted and that the communlcatlons serv1ce

prov1der be compensated by the United States for Treasonable -

expenses.

~N

IT Is FURTHER REQUESTED that, pursuant to 18 U.s. C °§
‘2703(0)(1)(B), the Court order that NYNEX a provider of '
electronlc»communlcatlon service as defined in 18 U. S.cC. §.
2510(15), disclose to the appllcant and the FBI forthw1th all
published and non-published subscriber information and toll
records and information pertaining to the telephone numbers used,
if any, which may be requested in furtherance of thls
investigatlon, within twenty four (24) hours of said request
‘there belng reason to believe that the contents of the
information sought are relevant to legitimate law enforcement o
inquiry.

IT IS FURTHER REQUESTED that to avoid prejudice to

this criminal 1nvest1gatlon the court order NYNEX and Cellular



50

'oné, and their respective agents and employees not to disclose or
cause a disclosure of this Gourt's Order or the request for
information, facilities, and assistance by the FBI or the .
ex1stence of the 1nvest1gatlon to arny person other than tho of
their agents and employees who required said information to
accomplish the services requested herein. 1In particular, said
providers and their agents and employees should be ordered not to
‘make such dlsclosure to a lessee, telephone subscrlber, or any
interceptee or participant in the intercerted communications.

IT IS FURTHER REQUESTED that this affidavi+ the

attached appllcatlon the resultlng order and all reports

pursuant to that order be sealed until further order of the

Court.

fy//ﬁbéTER R. Mbﬁ;;::;yiifffgj

Special Agent
Federal Bureau of Investigation

Sworn to before me this
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THOMAS B, GRIESA

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK




